Oak Park
City Council Agenda

May 1, 2017




AGENDA
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING
36" CITY COUNCIL
OAK PARK, MICHIGAN
May 1, 2017
7:00 PM

10.

1.

CALL TO ORDER
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
ROLL CALL

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

CONSENT AGENDA

The following routine items are presented for City Council approval without discussion, as a single agenda item. Should any Council Member

wish 10 discuss or disapprove any item it must be dropped from the blanket motion of approval and considered as a separate ilem.

Regular Council Meeting Minutes of April 19, 2017

Special Council Meeting Minutes of April 19, 2017

Special Council Meeting Minutes of April 25, 2017

Planning Commission Meeting Minutes of March 13,2017

Beautification Advisory Commission Meeting Minutes of February 21, 2017

Retirement Board Meeting Minutes of January 23, 2017, February 27, 2017 and March 27, 2017

Agreement with the Road Commission for Qakland County for street sweeping, litter picking,

and lawn mowing services on Greenfield Road from Eight to Ten Mile Roads and on Ten Mile

Road from Greenfield to Maplefield

H. Resolution designating Kevin J. Yee as the agent for the City of Oak Park with regard to the
Oakland County West Nile Virus Reimbursement Program

I Licenses - New and Renewals as submitted for May 1, 2017

QmMmonN®»

RECOGNITION OF VISITING ELECTED OFFICIALS

SPECIAL RECOGNITION/PRESENTATIONS:

A. City Manager Employee Recognition — Dawnetta Boyde-Hale
B. Master Plan Committee Special Recognition

PUBLIC HEARINGS:

A. Public Hearing to receive public comment on the reprogramming of the 2015 Community
Development Block Grant Funds

B. Resolution approving the reprogramming of the 2015 Community Development Block Grant
Funds

COMMUNICATIONS: None
SPECIAL LICENSES: None

ACCOUNTING REPORTS:

A. Approval for payment of invoices submitted by Garan, Lucow, Miller, P.C. for legal services in
the total amount of $17,498.45



12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

BIDS:

A. Request to award the bid for the 2017 Fire Hydrant Blasting and Repainting Project, M-646 to
Cross Renovation, Inc. of Livonia, MI for the tota] contract amount not to exceed $45,000.00

ORDINANCES: None
CITY ATTORNEY

CITY MANAGER:
Administration

A. Request to Schedule a Public Hearing on the FY 2017-2018 Annual Budget for Monday,
May 15, 2017 at 7:00 PM

B. Resolution approving a legal services agreement for attorney services between Garan, Lucow,
Miller, P.C. and the City of Oak Park

Community and Economic Development, Planning Division

C. Request to accept the recommendation of the Planning Commission for approval of the Special
Land Use (Convalescent Home) and Site Plan for Qakridge Manor Nursing and Rehabilitation
Center, 13200 Oak Park Boulevard, subject to conditions

D. Request to accept the recommendation of the Planning Commission for approval of the Special
Land Use (Restaurant that serves alcoholic liquor) and Site Plan for Sweet Soul Bistro, 13400
Eight Mile, subject to conditions

E. Request to accept the recommendation of the Planning Commission and adopt a six month
moratorium on the review and approval of any new self-storage facilities in the City of Oak Park

F.  Request to approve a fagade improvement grant to Stanley Upholstering, 25651 Coolidge, for
50% of the project costs not to exceed $2,500.00

Recreation

G. Request to increase the Summer Day Camp and Latchkey participant fees for weeks starting
June 19, 2017 and June 26, 2017

CALL TO THE AUDIENCE

Each speaker's remarks are a matter of public record; the speaker, alone, is responsible for his or her comments and the City
of Oak Park does not, by permitting such remarks, support. endorse or accept the content, thereof, as being true or accurate.
“Any person while being heard at a City Council Meeting may be called to order by the Chair, or any Council Member for
failure to be germane to the business of the City, vulgarity, or personal attacks on persons or institutions.” There is a three
minute time limit per speaker,

CALL TO THE COUNCIL

CLOSED SESSION

Pursuant to Section 8 of the Open Meetings Act to convene into a Closed Session to discuss Attorney
Client Privileged Communication and Pending Litigation regarding City of Huntington Woods, City
of Pleasant Ridge vs. City of Oak Park, 45th District Court,

ADJOURNMENT

The City of Oak Park will comply with the spirit and intent of the American with Disabilities Act. We will provide support and make
reasonable accommodations to assist people with disabilitics to access and participate in our programs, facilities and services.
Accommodations to participate at a Council Meeting will be made with 7-day prior notice.



5A

CITY OF OAK PARK, MICHIGAN
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING OF THE
36" OAK PARK CITY COUNCIL
April 19, 2017
7:00 PM

MINUTES

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 PM by Mayor McClellan in the Council Chambers of City Hall
located at 14000 Oak Park Boulevard, Qak Park, M1 48237, (248) 691-7544.

PRESENT:  Mayor McClellan, Mayor Pro Tem Burns, Council Member Rich,
Council Member Speech, Council Member Radner

ABSENT: None

OTHERS
PRESENT:  City Manager Tungate, City Clerk Norris, City Attorney Duff

APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

CM-04-141-17 (AGENDA ITEM #4) ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA AS
PRESENTED - APPROVED

Motion by Burns, seconded by Speech, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to approve the
agenda as presented.

Voice Vote: Yes: McClellan, Burns, Rich, Speech, Radner
No: None
Absent: None

MOTION DECLARED ADOPTED
CONSENT AGENDA:
CM-04-142-17 (AGENDA ITEM #5A-F) CONSENT AGENDA - APPROVED

Motion by Burns, seconded by Speech, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to approve the
Consent Agenda consisting of the following items:

Regular Council Meeting Minutes of March 27, 2017 CM-04-143-17

Regular Council Meeting Minutes of April 3, 2017 CM-04-144-17

Request to cancel the regularly scheduled Zoning Board of Appeals meeting of April 25,
2017 CM-04-145-17

Request to advertise for bids for the Program Year 2016 Yard Services Program, M-669
CM-04-146-17

Request to schedule a public hearing on May 1, 2017 to receive comments on the possible
reprogramming of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds for the Program
Years of 2015 and 2016 CM-04-147-17

F. Licenses - New and Renewals as submitted for April 19, 2017 CM-04-148-17

O ampr

m



MERCHANT’S LICENSES - April 19, 2017

(Subject to All Departmental Approvals)

NEW MERCHANT
To Go Café

RENEWALS

Slot Speedway USA Inc
Kings Welding Works Inc
LaDuke Corporation
Michigan Dessert Corp
Plumbing Techs Pipecon
Huntington Cleaners

Live Smart
Partlan-Labadie Sheet Metal
Deezers LLC

Car Stop Automotive Inc
Tobacco Import USA
Trinity Physical Therapy
Glory Wireless 9B

Studio Nova

Ashley-Bleu Diamond Inc
Danny’s Fine Wine
Tradefirst.com

Oak Park Urgent Care
Freedom Cleaners

Hungry Howie’s Pizza
Zalman's Treasurers
Bombshell Lyfe Studio
Weathergard Window Factory
Marblecast Inc

Hartwell Cement Company
John & Karon's Hair Affair
Forgotten Harvest
Foxxiladi Boutique

Salon Renu

Sukhothai Restaurant
Summit Disability PLLC
THD at Home Service
Four Sisters Fashion

The Suit Depot
McDonalds

20700 Hubbell LLC

Paper Goods Plus

7-11 Food Stores #13486
Bricco Excavating Company
MBush LLC

One-Stop Cash Advance
Wireless U Now

Primos Pizza #]

ADDRESS
21700 Greenfield

ADDRESS

10200 Capital

10311 Capital

10311 Capital

10750 Capital

12700 Capital

13103 Capital

13305 Capital 600
12901 Cloverdale
13201 Cloverdale
21006 Coolidge
21060 Coolidge
21675 Coolidge 1B
22150 Coolidge
22153 Coolidge
22211 Coolidge
23063 Coolidge
23200 Coolidge
24661 Coolidge
24681 Coolidge
24691 Coolidge
26001 Coolidge
26011 Coolidge
14350 Eight Mile
14831 Eleven Mile
21650 Fern

21700 Greenfield 250
21800 Greenfield
23300 Greenfield 114
23300 Greenfield 300
25226 Greenfield
25900 Greenfield 111
25900 Greenfield 318
26068 Greenfield
26158 Greenfield
26160 Greenfield
20700 Hubbell

15310 Lincoln

15350 Lincoln

21201 Meyers

8100 Nine Mile

8530 Nine Mile A
8980 Nine Mile
10100 Nine Mile

FEE
$150

FEE

$150
$150
$187.50
$150
$225
$150
$150
$150
$225
$150
$225
$225
$225
$225
$150
5150
$150
$150
$150
$150
$150
$225
$150
$150
$150
5150
$150
$225
$150
$225
$225
$225
$150
$225
$225
$150
$225
$150
$150
$150
$225
$150
$187.50

Regular Council Meeting
April 19, 2017
Page 2

BUSINESS TYPE
Restaurant

BUSINESS TYPE

Gas Station

Welding Fabricators
Roofing and Sheet Metal
Food Preparation
Plumbing Contractor
Laundry Service

Sheet Metal
Hookah
Automotive
Tobacco

Physical Therapy
Wireless

Men’s Clothing
Jeweler

Liquor

Banking

Medical

Laundry
Restaurant

Jeweler

Studio

Home Improvement
Home Improvement
Concrete Company
Salon

Food pantry

Salon

Salon

Restaurant

Home Improvement
Clothing Store
Clothing Store
Restaurant

Storaged

Party Supplier
Convenience Store
Excavators

Banking
Wireless
Restaurant



Regular Council Meeting

April 19, 2017
Page 3
Manistee Clinic 10300 Nine Mile $150 Medical
Ascension Bibles & Books 10720 Nine Mile $150 Book Store
Walgreens #5425 13550 Nine Mile $150 Drug Store
Qak Park Medical Center 15300 Nine Mile $150 Medical
Discount Office & Equipment 12780 Northend $225 Office Supplies
Positive Home Doctors Inc 12800 Northend $150 Medical
EJ USA Inc 13001 Northend $150
Brilar LL.C 13200 Northend $150 Landscaping
Alfa Medical Equipment Sup. 13181 Ten Mile $150 Medical Supplier
H & R Block 13241 Ten Mile $150 Tax Service
Oak Park Beauty 13421 Ten Mile $187.50 Salon
Voice Vote: Yes: McClellan, Burns, Rich, Speech, Radner
No: None
Absent: None
MOTION DECLARED ADOPTED
RECOGNITION OF VISITING ELECTED OFFICIALS: None
SPECIAL RECOGNITION/PRESENTATIONS: None
PUBLIC HEARINGS:
CM-04-149-17 (AGENDA ITEM #8A) RESOLUTION NO. 9 AND RESOLUTION

NO. 10 CONFIRMING THE ROLLS AND SETTING THE DUE
DATE AND PENALTY FOR SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICTS

- ADOPTED

Motion by, Speech, seconded by Burns, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to adopt the
following Special Assessment Resolution (No. 9) confirming the Rolls, and Special
Assessment Resolution (No. 10), setting the due date of May 31, 2017, together with a
penalty of ten percent (10%) for Special Assessment District No. 660 — Unpaid Utility
Invoices; Special Assessment District No. 661 — Unpaid False Alarm Invoices; Special
Assessment District No. 662 — Unpaid Special Property Blight Invoices; and Special
Assessment District No. 663 — Unpaid Sidewalk Repair Invoices; and withholding the
temporary exceptions pending further review by the City Manager to report back to the
City Council as to whether they will be kept on the Roll; added on at a later date or

removed permanently:

CITY OF OAK PARK
MICHIGAN

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT RESOLUTION NO. 9

DISTRICT NO. 660
DISTRICT NO. 661
DISTRICT NO. 662
DISTRICT NO. 663

The Mayor announced that this was the time set to review the Special Assessment Roll as prepared and
revised by the City Assessor for unpaid expenses incurred on private premises, assessed in Special

Assessment Roll No. 660, 661, 662, 663



The Clerk read into the record the objections that were received.

There were objections received as follows:

SAD Address Parcel ID #

660 Unpaid Utility Invoices

660 14000 Balfour #25-19-408-045
660 14461 Northfield #25-30-180-001
660 8785 Woodside Drive #25-28-102-012
661 Unpaid False Alarm Invoices

661 23741 Beverly #25-30-301-001
662 Unpaid Property Blight Invoices

662 10355 Capilal #25-32-276-069
661 23030 Marlow #25-30-378-014
662 26090 Marlowe Place #25-19-180-036
662 23028 Norwood #25-28-352-034
662 24611 Radclift #25-30-127-044
663 Unpaid Sidewalk Repair Invoices

663 10100 Capital #25-32-251-074
663 13751 Courtland #25-31-276-023
663 10241 Dartmouth #25-29-202-034

Regular Council Meeting

April 19, 2017
Page 4

BE IT RESOLVED That Special Assessment Roll No. 660, 661, 662 and 663 as prepared and revised by
the City Assessor, are hereby confirmed.

CITY OF OAK PARK

MICHIGAN

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT RESOLUTION NO. 10

DISTRICT NO. 660
DISTRICT NO. 661
DISTRICT NO. 662
DISTRICT NQO. 663

At a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Qak Park, held the 19th day of April, 2017 at 7:00

P.M., at the City Hall, 14000 Oak Park Boulevard, in said City.

WHEREAS, by resolution adopted April 19, 2017, Special Assessment Rolls No. 660, 661, 662 and 663
were confirmed by the City Council.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: Said Special Assessment Rolls shall be due in one (1)
installment payable on May 31, 2017, in full, together with a penalty of ten percent (10%).

Roll Call Vote:

Absent:

McClellan, Burns, Speech, Radner, Rich

None
None

MOTION DECLARED ADOPTED



Regular Council Meeting

April 19, 2017
Page 5
COMMUNICATIONS: None
SPECIAL LICENSES:
CM-04-150-17 (AGENDA ITEM #10A) SPECIAL EVENT REQUEST - FIRST

BAPTIST CHURCH OF OAK PARK - APPROVED

Motion by Speech, seconded by Burns, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to approve the
following Special Event request subject to all departmental approvals:

Name Event Fee
First Baptist Church of 24201 Coolidge, Outreach Event App fee waived
QOak Park June 3, 2017 (11:00 a.m. — 4:00 p.m.)
Roll Call Vote: Yes: McClellan, Burns, Rich, Radner, Speech
No: None

Absent: None
MOTION DECLARED ADOPTED

ACCOUNTING REPORTS:

CM-04-151-17 (AGENDA ITEM #11A) APPROVAL FOR PAYMENT OF AN
INVOICE SUBMITTED BY SECREST, WARDLE, LYNCH,
HAMPTON, TRUEX & MORLEY, P.C. FOR LEGAL SERVICES IN
THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF $2,652.00 - APPROVED

Motion by Speech, seconded by Radner, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to approve
payment of Invoice #1305910 as submitted by Secrest, Wardle, Lynch, Hampton, Truex &
Morley, P.C. for legal services in the total amount of $2,652.00.

Roll Call Vote: Yes: McClellan, Burns, Radner, Rich, Speech
No: None
Absent: None

MOTION DECLARED ADOPTED

BIDS: None

ORDINANCES:

CM-04-152-17 (AGENDA ITEM #13A) SECOND READING AND ADOPTION OF
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ARTICLE 1V, HOUSING,
CHAPTER 18, BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS, OF
THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF OAK PARK BY
AMENDING DIVISION 3, INSPECTIONS, THEREOF, THEREBY
PERMITTING ADVERTISING OF RENTAL UNITS CERTIFIED
WITHIN LAST SIX MONTHS - APPROVED

Motion by Burns, seconded by Speech, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to approve the
second reading and adopt the following ordinance:



Regular Council Meeting
April 19, 2017
Page 6

CITY OF OAK PARK, MICHIGAN
ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ARTICLE IV, HOUSING, CHAPTER 18, BUILDINGS AND BUILDING
REGULATIONS, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF OAK PARK BY AMENDING
DIVISION 3, INSPECTIONS, THEREOF, THEREBY PERMITTING ADVERTISING OF RENTAL
UNITS CERTIFIED WITHIN LAST SIX MONTHS.

THE CITY OF OAK PARK ORDAINS:

SECTION 1. Division 3, Inspections, of Article IV, Housing, of Chapter 18, Buildings and Building
Regulations, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Oak Park is hereby amended to read
as follows:

Sec. 18-181. - To determine compliance with applicable codes; certificates of compliance and occupancy.

No owner of any rental unit governed by this article, and no agent of such owner, shall hereafter offer to let
or hire, any one-family dwelling or any unit in a two-family dwelling, unless such unit has been inspected
and a certificate of compliance has been issued by the department of technical and planning services. The
department of technical and planning services shall cause such inspection to be had, and such certificate of

occupancy to be issued, if the unit meets the minimum requirements of all applicable state and city housing
and building codes, within a reasonable time after application therefor and payment of any inspection fee.
The certificate of occupancy shall certify that the dwelling unit complies with all applicable provisions of
such building and housing codes. An inspection is also required upon each vacancy and re-occupancy of the
rental unit. If the rental unit has been issued a certificate of compliance within six months of the vacancy,
the Owner is permitted to advertise the unit as long as the Owner has reported the vacancy and requested a
re-occupancy inspection by the Rental Inspector.

SECTION 2.  Severability.
No other portion, paragraph or phrase of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Oak Park
shall be affected by this ordinance, except as to the above section and in the event any portion,
section or subsection of this ordinance shall be held invalid for any reason, such invalidation
shall not be construed to affect the validity of any other part or portion of this ordinance or
of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Oak Park.

SECTION 3. Effective Date.

This ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date of its passage and shall be
published as required by the Charter of the City of Oak Park.

Roll Call Vote: Yes: McClellan, Burns, Speech, Rich
No: None
Absent: Radner
MOTION DECLARED ADOPTED

CITY ATTORNEY: No Report



Regular Council Meeting

April 19, 2017
Page 7
CITY MANAGER:
City Clerk
CM-04-153-17 (AGENDA ITEM #15A) MOTION TO REJECT THE LOCAL

OFFICERS’ COMPENSATION COMMISSION’S SALARY
DETERMINATION FOR LOCAL ELECTED OFFICIALS
- FAILED

Motion by Rich, seconded by Radner, FAILED, to reject the Local Officers’ Compensation
Commission’s salary determination for local elected officials. (2/3 vote required for

adoption)
Roll Call Vote: Yes: McClellan, Radner, Rich
No: Burns, Speech
Absent: None
MOTION FAILED

City Clerk Norris reported that Section 2-314 of the City Code requires the Local Officer's
Compensation Commission to meet every odd-numbered year to determine the salaries of all
elected officials of the city, which determination shall be the salaries unless the city council by a
two-thirds vote of the members elected and serving on the city council shall reject them. In case of
rejection, the existing salary shall prevail (Section 2-313). At the April 6, 2017 meeting of the
LOCC, the commission voted to increase the annual salaries of the Mayor, Mayor Pro Tem and
Council Members by 3% which are reflected as follows: New annual salaries, Mayor - $6,283;
Mayor Pro Tem — $5,237; Council Member — $4,888.

CM-04-154-17 (AGENDA ITEM #15B) RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING
ACCEPTANCE OF THE HELP AMERICA VOTE ACT (HAVA)
GRANT AGREEMENT - APPROVED

Motion by Speech, seconded by Radner, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to approve the
following resolution authorizing acceptance of the Help America Vote Act (HAVA) Grant
Agreement:

CITY OF OAK PARK
COUNTY OF OAKLAND

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ACCEPTANCE OF THE
HELP AMERICA VOTE ACT (HAVA) GRANT AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, the Grant Agreement is the mechanism by which Counties, Cities and Townships
apply to the State of Michigan to receive Federal HAVA and State-appropriated funded voting systems,
including optical scan tabulators, accessible voting devices and Election Management System (EMS)
software, pursuant to the Federal Help America Vote Act (HAVA) of 2002; and

WHEREAS, the Grant Agreement process applies to voting system purchases occurring between
March 1, 2017 and April 30, 2017; and

WHEREAS, The Grant Agreement is to establish a grant program to use State-appropriated and
Federal HAV A funds to acquire and implement replacement voting systems throughout the state; and



Regular Council Meeting
April 19, 2017
Page 8

WHEREAS, The Michigan Department of Technology, Management and Budget has entered into a
Master Contract with each Contractor selected to provide voting systems; and

WHEREAS, State-appropriated and Federal HAVA funding provided via the Grant Agreement
covers the purchase of the voting system, the software license fee for the EMS software for the full 10-year
contract term, and the initial service and maintenance period for all components (which covers the
acquisition year, plus 4 additional years); and

WHEREAS, the Master Contract includes an extended service and maintenance period beyond the
initial service and maintenance period for an additional five-year period the costs of which along with any
other additional expenses, if any, are the sole responsibility of each individual county/local jurisdiction; and

WHEREAS, the Municipality shall obtain this Grant by entering into the Help America Vote Act
(HAVA) Grant Agreement Voting System Hardware, Firmware and Software.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

1. The City Clerk, a position currently held by T. Edwin Norris, is designated as the Grant
Manager for the City of Oak Park, Michigan and is authorized to administer the Grant in accordance with
its terms.

2. The City Clerk, T. Edwin Norris is authorized to sign and enter into the Grant Agreement.

3. The proposed form of the Help America Vote Act (HAVA) Grant Agreement between the
Municipality and the State of Michigan/Michigan Department of State is hereby approved subject to review
by the City Attorney and the Authorized Representative, City Clerk, T. Edwin Norris is authorized and
directed to execute the Grant Agreement with such revisions as are permitted by law and agreed to by the
Authorized Representative.

4. The Authorized Representative, City Clerk, T. Edwin Norris is hereby jointly or severally
authorized to take any actions necessary to comply with the requirements of the State of
Michigan/Michigan Department of State in connection with the issuance of the Grant. The Authorized
Representative is hereby jointly or severally authorized to execute and deliver such other contracts,
certificates, documents, instruments, applications and other papers as may be required by the State of
Michigan/Michigan Department of State or as may otherwise be necessary to effect the approval and
delivery of the Grant,

5. The Municipality acknowledges that the Grant Agreement is a contract between the
Municipality and the State of Michigan/Michigan Department of State.

6. All resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with the provisions of this
Resolution are rescinded.

7. This Resolution is given immediate effect.

Roll Call Vote: Yes: McClellan, Burns, Speech, Rich, Radner
No: None
Absent; None

MOTION DECLARED ADOPTED



Regular Council Meeting
April 19, 2017
Page 9

Mr. Norris indicated this grant agreement is the mechanism by which the City applies to the State
of Michigan to receive a Federal HAVA and State-appropriated funded voting system, including
optical scan tabulators, accessible voting devices and Election Management System (EMS)
software, pursuant to the Federal Help America Vote Act (HAVA) of 2002. The Grant Agreement
requires that the City designate someone to serve as the Grant Manager for the municipality as well
as specify who has authority to execute the document on behalf of the City and the Resolution
designates the City Clerk to sign and enter into the Agreement and to serve as the Grant Manager.

Finance

CM-04-155-17 (AGENDA ITEM #15C) AGREEMENT WITH THE BERKLEY
SCHOOL DISTRICT TO COLLECT THEIR 2017 PROPERTY TAX
LEVY AND TRANSFER THE COLLECTED FUNDS AS
REQUIRED BY STATE STATUTE - APPROVED

Motion by Rich, seconded by Burns, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to approve an
agreement with the Berkley School District to coliect their 2017 property tax levy and
transfer the collected funds as required by State Statute.

Roll Call Vote: Yes: McClellan, Burns, Speech, Rich, Radner
No: None
Absent: None

MOTION DECLARED ADOPTED

City Manager Tungate reported that the City of Oak Park annually enters into an agreement with
the Berkley School District to collect their property taxes. A 1% fee is collected for this service.

Economic Development and Communications

CM-04-156-17 (AGENDA ITEM #15C) RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY
OF OAK PARK TO PARTICIPATE IN THE MICHIGAN
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (MEDC)
REDEVELOPMENT READY COMMUNITIES PROGRAM
- APPROVED

Motion by Rich, seconded by Burns, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to approve the
following resolution authorizing the City of Oak Park to participate in the Michigan
Economic Development Corporation (MEDC) Redevelopment Ready Communities
Program:

City of Oak Park, Michigan

Resolution Authorizing the City of Oak Park to Participate in the Michigan Economic
Development Corporation (MEDC) Redevelopment Ready Communities Program

Whereas, the Michigan Economic Development Corporation (MEDC) has established the statewide
Redevelopment Ready Communities (RRC) Program to empower communities to shape their future and
maximize economic potential; and



Regular Council Meeting
April 19, 2017
Page 10

Whereas, RRC is a program that provides technical assistance to and certifies Michigan communities who
actively engage stakeholders and plan deliberate, fair and consistent processes; and

Whereas, the City of Oak Park recognizes the value of the RRC Program and seeks to improve its
redevelopment readiness via a detailed review of existing development processes; and

Whereas, the RRC program includes evaluating and strengthening the development-related partnerships
between the City Council and stakeholder organizations such as: the MEDC, Qak Park Corridor
Improvement Authority (CIA), Oak Park Planning Commission (PC), and Oakland County; and

Whereas, the City of Oak Park has adopted a new Master Plan in 2017 which will guide future development
and redevelopment of the City and has incorporated the RRC best practices; and

Whereas, opportunities for the redevelopment of existing parcels and buildings will be a significant source
of future growth and investment in the City given the limited opportunities for greenfield development
within the city limits; and

Now, Therefore, it is Resolved as follows:

1. The Oak Park City Council is willing to participate in the MEDC Redevelopment Ready
Communities Program, including increased interaction and partnership with the MEDC,
CIA, PC, Oakland County, and other stakeholders in the development review process.

2. It is the intention of the City of Oak Park to utilize the RRC Best Practices and evaluation
process to improve our processes and communication with stakeholders.
3. City Administration is hereby authorized to proceed toward implementation of the

recormmendations necessary to receive RRC Certification from the MEDC.

This resolution shall become effective April 19, 2017.

Roll Call Vote: Yes: McClellan, Burns, Speech, Rich, Radner
No: None
Absent: None
MOTION DECLARED ADOPTED

Community and Economic Development Director Marrone reported that the Community &
Economic Development Department has completed the first step in the RRC Engagement process
by completing the RRC Best Practice Evaluation. The next step in the engagement process is the
passing of a resolution in support of the RRC process and the steps necessary to become a certified
RRD Community. There are many benefits in becoming certified such as, access to grants, media
exposure to our redevelopment sites, and improved processes to attract development.

CALL TO THE AUDIENCE:

Misty Patterson from the Oak Park School Board thanked Oak Park staff for their participation with
reading month. She also reminded everyone about upcoming events including the Youth
Assistance Dinner on April 26th, Battle of the Bands on April 29th and the annual golf outing on
July 17th.

Idella Atkins, 21140 Westhampton, voiced concerns about a parking issue taking place in
front of her home and expressed a desire to change a city ordinance to address her concern.



Regular Council Meeting
April 19, 2017
Page 11
CALL TO THE COUNCIL:

Mayor McClellan shared a report on municipal financing that was presented at a Michigan
Municipal League (MML) conference

Mayor Pro Tem Burns wished everyone a good evening.
Council member Radner wished everyone a good evening.

Council Member Speech reminded everyone about World Dance Day April 29" and also the free
garage sale dates of April 27-30.

Council Member Rich wished everyone a good night.

ADJOURNMENT:

There being no further business to come before the City Council, Mayor McClellan adjourned the
meeting at 7:45 P.M.

T. Edwin Norris, City Clerk Marian McClellan, Mayor



5B

CITY OF OAK PARK, MICHIGAN
SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING OF THE
36" OAK PARK CITY COUNCIL
April 19, 2017
5:00 P.M.

MINUTES

This Special Meeting of the 36" Oak Park City Council was held in the Executive Conference Room of
City Hall located at 14000 Oak Park Boulevard, Oak Park, M1 48237.

Notice of this Special Meeting was given in compliance with the provisions of Act 267 of the Public Acts
of Michigan, 1976, as amended, the "Open Meetings Act".

The Special Meeting was called to order by Mayor McClellan at 5:00 P.M.

PRESENT: Mayor McClellan, Mayor Pro Tem Burns, Council Member Radner, Council
Member Rich (Arrived at 5:15 PM), Council Member Speech (Arrived at
5:07 PM)

ABSENT: None

ALSO PRESENT: City Manager Tungate, City Clerk Norris, City Attorney Duff, Finance
Director Crawford, Assistant to the City Manager McLain, Deputy Finance
Director Grondin, Assistant City Manager Yee

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

(AGENDA ITEM #3A) Consideration of rescinding prior council action (SCM-03-128-17)
regarding the reduction of members on the Planning Commission.

SCM-04-157-17 MOTION TO RESCIND PRIOR COUNCIL ACTION
(SCM-03-128-17) REGARDING THE REDUCTION OF
MEMBERS ON THE PLANNING COMMISSION - APPROVED

Motion by Radner, seconded by Burns, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to rescind prior
council action (SCM-03-128-17) regarding the reduction of members on the Planning

Commission.

Voice Vote: Yes: McClellan, Burns, Radner
No: None
Absent: Rich, Speech

MOTION DECLARED ADOPTED

Prior action by Council on March 27, 2017 (SCM-03-128-17) authorized the reduction of
members on the Planning Commission from 9 members to 7 members.



Special Council Meeting
April 19, 2017
Page 2

(AGENDA ITEM #3B) To discuss FY 2017-18, FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 departmental
budgets.

City Manager Tungate provided an overview of the budget process and council discussed
the following departmental budgets:

Human Resources

Information Technology

Library

Public Safety
Due to time constraints, the planned City Clerk and City Council/City Manager budget
discussions were moved to the next budget session scheduled for April 25, 2017.

CALL TO THE AUDIENCE:

There were no members of the audience wishing to speak.

ADJOURNMENT:

The Special Meeting adjourned at 6:45 p.m.

T. Edwin Norris, City Clerk Marian McClellan, Mayor



5C

CITY OF OAK PARK, MICHIGAN
SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING OF THE
36" OAK PARK CITY COUNCIL
April 25, 2017
5:00 P.M.

MINUTES

This Special Meeting of the 36™ Oak Park City Council was held in the Executive Conference Room of
City Hall located at 14000 Oak Park Boulevard, Qak Park, MI 48237.

Notice of this Special Meeting was given in compliance with the provisions of Act 267 of the Public Acts
of Michigan, 1976, as amended, the "Open Meetings Act".

The Special Meeting was called to order by Mayor McClellan at 5:00 P.M.

PRESENT: Mayor McClellan, Mayor Pro Tem Burns, Council Member Radner (Arrived
at 5:10 PM), Council Member Rich

ABSENT: Council Member Speech

ALSO PRESENT: City Manager Tungate, City Clerk Norris, City Attorney Duff, Finance
Director Crawford, Assistant to the City Manager McLain, Deputy Finance
Director Grondin, Assistant City Manager Yee, Deputy Finance Director
Winters

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

(AGENDA ITEM #3A) To discuss FY 2017-18, FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 departmental
budgets.

City Council discussed the following departmental budgets:

City Clerk

City Council/City Manager
Public Works

Water & Sewer

Technical & Planning
Finance

Recreation

CALL TO THE AUDIENCE:

There were no members of the audience wishing to speak.

ADJOURNMENT:

The Special Meeting adjourned at 6:23 p.m.

T. Edwin Norris, City Clerk Marian McClellan, Mayor



5D

CITY OF OAK PARK PLANNING COMMISSION
March 13, 2017
MINUTES

Meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m., in the City Council Chambers, Qak Park City Hall,
14000 Oak Park Boulevard, Oak Park, MI, by Vice Chairperson Brown and roll call was made.

PRESENT: Vice Chairperson Brown
Commissioner Burns
Commissioner Eizelman
Commissioner McClellan
Commissioner Tungate
Commissioner Seligson
Commissioner Walters-Gill

ABSENT: Chairperson Torgow
Commissioner Tkatch
OTHERS PRESENT: City Planner, Kevin Rulkowski

Community & Economic Development Director, Kimberly Marrone
City Clerk, Ed Norris

APPROVAL OF AGENDA OF MARCH 13, 2017

MOTION by Burns, SECONDED by Walters-Gill, to approve the agenda for March 13, 2017,
as amended to add Item 8B.3) Request to schedule Special Land Use Public Hearing for Sweet
Soul Bistro, 13400 Eight Mile Road.

VOTE: Yes: All

No: None
MOTION CARRIED

APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF DECEMBER 12, 2016 - APPROVED

MOTION by McClellan, SECONDED by Walters-Gill, to approve the minutes of December
12, 2016, as submitted.

VOTE: Yes: All

No: None
MOTION CARRIED

COMMUNICATIONS/CORRESPONDENCE: None



City of Oak Park Planning Commission Minutes
March 13, 2017
Page 2 of 6

PUBLIC HEARING:
A. Public Hearing to receive public comments on a Proposed Master Plan for the City of
Qak Park.

Vice Chairperson Brown referenced City Planner Rulkowski's report, dated March 8, 2017:

At the March 13" Planning Commission meeting a Public Hearing is scheduled to hear
public comments on the Proposed Master Plan for the City of Oak Park, After receiving the
public comments, the Planning Commission will have to decide whether to adopt the
Proposed Master Plan as presented or seek further modification. The preparation and
approval of a Master Plan for a community is considered the single most important duty of
the Planning Commission. As such, the Michigan Planning Enabling Act of 2008 requires
an affirmative vote of a super majority (2/3rds) of the members of the Planning Commission
for approval.

125.3843. Sec. 43.

(2) The approval of the proposed master pian shall be by resolution of the
planning commission carried by the affirmative votes of not less than 2/3 of the
members of a city or village planning commission...

For this reason, each Planning Commissioner’s attendance at the meeting is very important.

Last week a bound Draft Master Plan was delivered to each Planning Commissioner for
review. The Draft Master Plan represents months of information ga thering, public input, and
ongoing consultation between City staff and the Planning Commission. No fewer than five
Cily staff members worked directly on the Draft Master Plan, in addition to many other City
staif that contributed in a number of ways.

As required by the Municipal Planning Act, a copy of the Draft Master Plan was mailed to all
the communities surrounding Oak Park and the Oakland County Coordinating Zoning
Committee. At this point in time we have received comments from the City of Southfield,
Royal Oak Township and Oakland County planning staff indicating that Oak Park's Draft
Master Plan is not inconsistent with their Master Plans. On March 7" the Oakland County
Coordinating Zoning Committee met and voted to ratify the finding of the Oakland County
planning staff indicating that Oak Park's Draft Master Plan is not inconsistent with the Master
Plans of the communities surrounding Oak Park.

In the memorandum that accompanied the bound Draft Master Plan from last week, it was
noted that there were a few last minute amendments that were not incorporated in the
bound document. These included changes to the Goals and Implementation section (pages
67-78) as well as a clarification to the Zoning Plan (page 79) as recommended by the
Oakland County planning staff. As the Draft Master Plan is a “work in progress” we have
made a few additional modifications to the information you received last week. These
changes are as follows:

- An updated Public Transportation Map from SMART on page 61.

- A corrected Parks Map on page 40.

- Revision of the listings of recreation facilities located in the various parks on pages
41 through 51.



City of Oak Park Planning Commission Minutes
March 13, 2017
Page 3 of 6

- Typographical corrections throughout the document.

So that there is complete clarity as to the Final Draft Master Plan that is being reviewed for
approval, the version included in this packet is the one City staff is recommending for
consideration.

It is with great pleasure that the Department of Community and Economic De velopment
recommends adoption of the presented Master Plan for the City of Oak Park.

Vice Chairperson Brown opened the Public Hearing at 7:08 p.m.
There were no members of the public present.
Vice Chairperson Brown closed the Public Hearing at 7:08 p.m.

Mayor Pro Tem Burns expressed concern that the snow storm and power outages in the City
might have discouraged the pubic from attending the public hearing. Mr. Rulkowski noted other
opportunities provided for public input, including a well-attended open house in January.

City Planner Rulkowski explained the copy of the Plan distributed to Planning Commission
members in the meeting packet is the final version incorporating all changes and corrections
made to date.

City Manager Tungate commended Economic Development and Communications Director Kim
Marrone and City Planner Rulkowski, Assistant to the City Manager Crystal McLain, and all
other staff members who assisted in creating the Master Plan. In response to City Manager
Tungate’s query on the value of scheduling another public meeting, City Planner Rulkowski felt
an additional meeting would be unproductive. He cited the many notices and meetings directed
toward the public to solicit input during the statutory 60 day comment period.

Commissioner Eizelman commented on the great job done by City staff on the Plan.
Vice Chairperson Brown asked about a suggestion from Oakland County that responsibility for
action items could be assigned in the Plan. City Planner Rulkowski explained the final version

includes a goals and implementation section detailing the entities responsible and a time frame
for the action items contained in the Plan.

CONSENT AGENDA: No ltems Eligible This Month

OLD BUSINESS: None
NEW BUSINESS:
1) Consideration of Adoption of Proposed Master Plan for the City of Oak Park.

MOTION by Burns, SECONDED by Eizelman, to approve adoption of the Master Plan for the
City of Oak Park as presented.



City of Oak Park Planning Commission Minutes
March 13, 2017

Page 4 of 6
VOTE: Yes: Commissioners Burns, Eizelman, McClellan, Tungate, Seligson, Walters-
Gill, Vice Chairperson Brown
No: None

MOTION CARRIED

2) City of Southfield Northland Sub Area Master Plan Amendment.
Vice Chairperson Brown referenced City Planner Rulkowski's report, dated March 1, 2017:

The City of Southfield is requesting comment on the draft Northland Sub Area Master Plan
Amendment. This request is in accordance with the provisions of the Michigan Planning
Enabling Act (Public Act 33 of 2008). A letter from the City of Southfield with information on
how to view the draft Northiand Sub Area Master Plan Amendment is attached.

After reviewing the information in the draft Northland Sub Area Master Plan Amendment |
do not find the proposed plan would be inconsistent with the current City of Oak Park Master
Plan or the draft City of Oak Park Master Plan.

As the draft Northiand Sub Area Master Plan Amendment for the City of Southfield is not
inconsistent with the Master Plan of the City of Oak Park, | am recommending the Planning
Commission authorize sending the attached letter to the City of Southfield Planning
Commission and a copy to the Oakland County Coordinating Zoning Committee.

MOTION by Eizelman, SECONDED by Burns, based on the information presented in the
Planning Division Report, to authorize City Planner Rulkowski to send the following letter to the
City of Southfield Planning Commission and a copy to the Oakland County Coordinating Zoning
Committee:

March 14, 2017

City of Southfield Planning Commission

Attn: Terry Croad, AICP, ASLA, Director of Planning
26000 Evergreen Road

Southfield, Ml 48076

Dear Mr. Croad;

Thank you for the opportunity to review the draft Northland Sub Area Master Plan
Amendment. The draft Northiand Sub Area Master Plan Amendment was reviewed by
members of the City of Oak Park Planning Commission without any concerns. The Planning
Commission determined the Northland Sub Area Master Plan Amendment was not
inconsistent with the City of Oak Park Master Plan. The Planning Commission did not make
any suggestions or recommendations regarding the Northland Sub Area Master Plan
Amendment.

Sincerely,

Kevin Rulkowski, AICP
City Planner



City of Oak Park Planning Commission Minutes
March 13, 2017
Page 5 of 6

cc: Kristen Kapelanski, Economic Development & Community Affairs, Oakland County

VOTE:

Yes: Al
No: None

MOTION CARRIED

3) Request to schedule Special Land Use Public Hearing, Sweet Soul Bistro, 13400 Eight
Mile Road

Vice Chairperson Brown referenced City Planner Rulkowski's report, dated March 13, 2017;

The Planning Division has received an application from Sweet Soul Bistro, 13400 Eight Mile
Road, for Special Land Use approval for a Restaurant that serves Alcohol. In addition to the
General Standards outlined in Section 1900 of the Zoning Ordinance, the following specific
standards must be met:

Sec. 1930. - Restaurants serving alcoholic liquor.

Restaurants serving alcoholic liquor may be permitted in certain districts specified in this section
if the establishment is continually operated according to the following:

A.

B.

There shall at all times be maintained and provided culinary facilities to cook and
prepare food, and tables and seating areas to accommodate dining on the premises
by not fewer than 20 patrons at any time.

Not more than 50 percent of the gross floor area open to the general public shall be
used for purposes other than seating for diners, consisting of tables, chairs, booths,
and necessary aisleways. Public restroom facilities shall not be considered in this
determination.

The proposed restaurant is not located within 500 feet of a church or school building.
The distance between the church or school building and the contemplated location
shall be measured along the center line of the street or streets of address between
two fixed points on the center line determined by projecting straight lines, at right
angles to the center line, from the part of the church or school building nearest to the
contemplated location and from the part of the contemplated location nearest to the
church or school building. Notwithstanding the stated distance requirements, no
proposed restaurant will be permitted to serve alcoholic liquor if the restaurant is
located on a parcel of land adjacent to a parcel of land with a church or school
building. This provision may be waived by the cily council if the affected school(s) or
place(s) of worship, through its duly appointed or elected governing body, affirmatively
waives, in writing, its right to object to the restaurant and the city council determines
that the restaurant will not adversely affect the operation of the school or place of
worship.

The layout of the site of the proposed restaurant serving alcoholic liquor and its
relationship to streets providing access to the site shall be in a manner that vehicular
and pedestrian traffic to and from the proposed restaurant serving alcoholic liquor,
and the potential assembly of persons connected therewith, will not be hazardous,
endangering, or inconvenient to the surrounding neighborhood and commercial
district,



City of Oak Park Planning Commission Minutes
March 13, 2017
Page 6 of 6

E. The proposed restaurant serving alcoholic liquor will be compatible with adjacent uses
of land, considering the proximity of residential dwellings, churches, schools, public
structures, and other places of public gatherings.

F. The proposed restaurant serving alcoholic liquor will not be contrary to the public
interest or injurious to nearby properties.

G. The proposed restaurant serving alcoholic liquor will not have the possible effect of
downgrading and blighting the surrounding neighborhood.

H. The proposed restaurant serving alcoholic liguor will not reasonably be expected to
diminish the value of properties in the immediate area.

The proposed location of the restaurant does not meet the spacing requirements of Section
1930, C, and is located within 500 feet of a place of worship. The applicant has indicated
they will be seeking a waiver from the Jehovah Witness Church 13300 Eight Mile Road.

As part of the Special Land Use review process, a Public Hearing is required to be
scheduled. It is the recommendation of the Planning Division that the Planning
Commission schedule a Public Hearing for the April 10, 2017, regular meeting.

MOTION by Burns, SECONDED by Seligson, to approve the scheduling of a Public Hearing
for the April 10, 2017, regular Planning Commission meeting, on the application for a Special
Land Use Permit from Sweet Soul Bistro, 13400 Eight Mile Road.

VOTE: Yes: All
No: None
MOTION CARRIED

PLANNING COMMISSION MATTERS FOR DISCUSSION - from members only,

Director Marrone, in response to a question from Vice Chairperson Brown, indicated the
petitioner for a restaurant at the former radio station location on Eight Mile Road is expected to
be before the Planning Commission in May with a Site Plan application.

Director Marrone reported the Lincoln Center property is getting closer to having a tenant.

Vice Chairperson Brown and City Manager Tungate commented on continuing infrastructure
issues on MDOT's |-696 overpass in the Victoria Park location.

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON ITEMS NOT SCHEDULED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: None.

ADJOURNMENT
There being no further business, Vice Chairperson Brown adjourned the meeting at 7:40 p.m,

T. Edwin Norris, Recording Secretary



SE

CITY OF OAK PARK BEAUTIFICATION ADVISORY COMMISSION
FEBRUARY 21, 2017
MINUTES

Meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. in the City of Oak Park Community Center, 14300 Qak
Park Boulevard, Oak Park, Michigan, by Chairperson Reatha Richmond.

PRESENT: Chairperson Reatha Richmond, Vice Chairperson Lonnie Tabb-Upshaw,
Commissioners Brenda Moseley, Deborah Williamson, Idella Bailey,
Joyce Schulman, Karen Davis-Harris, Lonnie Tabb-Upshaw, Santhia Guinn,
Non-Voting Representative Kevin Yee

ABSENT: Commissioners Andrea Stawis, Angefa Mitchell, Carrie Dodds, Danielle Fracassa,
Judy Simmons, Larry Wilson, Mattie Boykin, Councilmember Kiesha Speech

GUEST: Michella Perry

APPROVAL OF MINUTES; SEPTEMBER 20, 2016

MOTION by Guinn, SECONDED by Tabb-Upshaw, to approve the Beautification
Advisory Commission meeting minutes of September 20, 2016 as submitted.

VOTE: Yes: All
Nao: None
MOTION CARRIED

OLD BUSINESS

BCSEM Quarterly Meeting — Commission members agree that overall, co-hosting the December
2016 BCSEM quarterly meeting with the city of Huntington Woods went very well. The
participants felt comfortable and the presentation went well, and the food was delicious, but
mentioned that there were issues with the involvement of the setup of the event. Also there
were issues with the speakers that should have been worked out on the agenda. Lonnie
mentioned that there were funds from a raffle that Oak Park had not received yet, and asked
the city to contact Huntington Woods’ officials so the funds could be released. Kevin stated
that he would reach out to Claire from Huntington Woods. The commissioners agree that in
the event of hosting another quarterly meeting that they will not consider to co-host with
another community.



NEW BUSINESS

Election Voting Chairperson and Vice Chairperson —
Motion by:  Joyce Schulman

Seconded by:

To nominate Lonnie Tabb-Upshaw for Chairperson
Allin Favor: YES: 4 NO:

Motion by:  Brenda Moseley
Seconded by:

To nominate Reatha Richmond for Chairperson
Allin Favor:  YES: 2 NO:

No nominations for Vice chairperson; Reatha Richmond stated that she would act as Vice
Chairperson until next election to vote for Vice Chairperson.

Flower Sale ~ Commissioners who will participate in the Flower Sale are to be at the
Community Center at 8:00 a.m. The flower sale hours are from 10:00 a.m. — 5:00 p.m. Lonnie
Tabb-Upshaw stated that she will get contact information from Reatha to confirm Walt as the
vendor for the flower sale. Lonnie was asked to provide a list of what will be sold at the flower
sale so a price list can be printed out. Members asked for t-shirts for the commissioners to
wear during their events (Flower Sale, Fourth of July Parade, etc ;). Kevin stated that the city is
looking into purchasing t-shirts for the boards and commissions, and will provide an update at
the next meating.

General Discussion — Commissioners mentioned that the flower pots placed at various areas in
the city were beautiful. New city projects that were mentioned were the branding over the 696
bridge at Coolidge, painting of the water tank and the Granzon road project from Church to
Coolidge, 9 & Harding water main projects, and DTE led light installation.

Meeting adjourned at 7:45 pm, next meeting April 18, 2017



SF

CITY OF OAK PARK, MICHIGAN
EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM AND
PUBLIC SAFETY RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES
CONCURRENT MEETING

January 23, 2017
4:30 PM

MINUTES

Chairperson Tungate called the meeting to order at 4:30 PM and asked the City Clerk to call roll.
EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM:

TRUSTEES PRESENT: Trustee McClellan, Trustee Tungate, Trustee, Trustee
Eickmeier, Waxenberg

TRUSTEES ABSENT: Trustee Mlynczyk
ALSO PRESENT: City Clerk Norris, City Attorney Duff, Deputy Finance
Director Crawford

PUBLIC SAFETY RETIREMENT SYSTEM:

TRUSTEES PRESENT: Trustee Tungate, Trustee McClellan, Trustee Tetler,
Trustee Rich (Arrived at 4:38 PM), Trustee Batora

TRUSTEES ABSENT: None

ALSO PRESENT: City Clerk Norris, City Attorney Duff, Deputy Finance

Director Crawford

(Agenda Item #3) Election of Officers

ERS-01-001-17 MOTION TO HAVE TRUSTEE TUNGATE SERVE AS
CHAIRPERSON OF THE ERS BOARD OF TRUSTEES
- APPROVED

Motion by McClellan, seconded by Waxenberg, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY,
to appoint Trustee Tungate as Chairperson for the Employees’ Retirement
System Board of Trustees.



Board of Trustees
Employees’ Retirement System and Public Safety Retirement System
Concurrent Meeting of January 23, 2017

Page: 2
Voice Vole: Yes: Tungate, McClellan, Eickmeier, Waxenberg
No: None
Absent: Mlynczyk

MOTION DECLARED ADOPTED

PSRS-01-001-17 MOTION TO HAVE TRUSTEE TUNGATE SERVE
AS CHAIRPERSON OF THE PSRS BOARD OF
TRUSTEES - APPROVED

Motion by McClellan, seconded by Tetler, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to
appoint Trustee Tungate as Chairperson for the Public Safety Retirement System
Board of Trustees.

Voice Vote: Yes: Tungate, McClellan, Tetler, Batora, Rich
No; None
Absent: None

MOTION DECLARED ADOPTED

ERS-01-002-17 MOTION TO HAVE TRUSTEE MCCLELLAN SERVE AS
VICE-CHAIRPERSON OF THE ERS BOARD OF
TRUSTEES - APPROVED

Motion by Mlynczyk, seconded by Tungate, CARRIED UNANIMQUSLY, to
appoint Trustee McClellan as Vice-Chairperson for the Employees’ Retirement
System Board of Trustees.

Voice Vote: Yes: Tungate, McClellan, Eickmeier, Waxenberg
No: None
Absent: Mlynczyk

MOTION DECLARED ADOPTED

PSRS-01-002-17 MOTION TO HAVE TRUSTEE MCCLELLAN SERVE AS
VICE-CHAIRPERSON OF THE PSRS BOARD OF
TRUSTEES - APPROVED

Motion by Batora, seconded by Tetler, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to appoint
Trustee McClellan as Vice-Chairperson for the Public Safety Retirement System
Board of Trustees.

Voice Vote: Yes: Tungate, McClellan, Tetler, Batora, Rich
No: None
Absent: None

MOTION DECLARED ADOPTED



Board of Trustees

Employees’ Retirement System and Public Safety Retirement System
Concurrent Meeting of January 23, 2017

Page: 3

(Agenda Item #4) 2017 Meeting Dates

ERS-01-003-17 RESOLUTION SCHEDULING THE 2017 ERS REGULAR
MEETING DATES - APPROVED

Motion by Eickmeier, seconded by Waxenberg, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY,
lo approve the following resolution scheduling the 2017 Regular Meeting dates:

Resolution of the Employees’ Retirement System
Board of Trustees

Schedule of Regular Meetings

WHEREAS, the Board is required to schedule regular quarterly meetings;
BE IT RESOLVED, that the following 2017 Schedule of Regular Meetings is approved:

January 23, 2017
April 24, 2017
July 24, 2017
October 23, 2017

Meetings will be held in the Executive Conference Room of City Hall, 14000 Oak Park Blvd.,
Qak Park, MI 48237 at 4:30 PM unless otherwise posted.

Voice Vote: Yes: Tungate, McClellan, Eickmeier, Waxenberg
No: None
Absent: Mlynczyk

MOTION DECLARED ADOPTED
PSRS-01-003-16 RESOLUTION SCHEDULING THE 2016 PSRS REGULAR
MEETING DATES - APPROVED

Motion by McCliellan, seconded by Batora, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to
approve the following resolution scheduling the 2016 Regular Meeting dates:

Resolution of the Public Safety Retirement System
Board of Trustees

Schedule of Regular Meetings
WHEREAS, the Board is required to schedule monthly meetings;
BE IT RESOLVED, that the following 2017 Schedule of Regular Meetings is approved:

January 23, 2017
February 27, 2017



Board of Trustees

Employees’ Retirement System and Public Safety Retirement System
Concurrent Meeting of January 23, 2017

Page: 4

March 27, 2017

April 24, 2017

May 22, 2017

June 26, 2017

July 24, 2017

August 28, 2017

September 25, 2017

October 23, 2017

November 27, 2017

December 27, 2017* (Wednesday)

Meetings will be held in the Executive Conference Room of City Hall, 14000 QOak Park Blvd.,
Ouk Park, MI 48237 at 4:30 PM unless otherwise posted.

Voice Volte: Yes: Tungate, McClellan, Tetler, Batora, Rich
No: None
Absent: None
MOTION DECLARED ADOPTED

(Agenda Item #5) Approval of Minutes

ERS-01-004-17 MINUTES FROM THE OCTOBER 10, 2016 ERS/PSRS
CONCURRENT MEETING - APPROVED

Motion by McClellan, seconded by Eickmeier, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to
approve the Minutes from the October 26, 2015 ERS/PSRS Concurrent Meeting.

Voice Vote: Yes: Tungate, McClellan, Eickmeier, Waxenberg
No: None
Absent: Mlynczyk

MOTION DECLARED ADOPTED

PSRS-01-004-17 MINUTES FROM THE OCTOBER 10, 2016 ERS/PSRS
CONCURRENT MEETING - APPROVED

Motion by Batora, seconded by Tetler, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to approve
the Minutes from the October 26, 2015 ERS/PSRS Concurrent Meeting.

Voice Vote: Yes: Tungate, McClellan, Tetler, Batora, Rich
No: None
Absent: None

MOTION DECLARED ADOPTED



Board of Trustees

Employees’ Retirement System and Public Safety Retirement System
Concurrent Meeting of January 23, 2017

Page: 5

ERS-01-005-17 MINUTES FROM THE NOVEMBER 10, 2016 ERS/PSRS
SPECIAL CONCURRENT MEETING - APPROVED

Motion by Waxenberg, seconded by Eickmeier, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY,
to approve the Minutes from the November 10, 2016 ERS/PSRS Special
Concurrent Meeting.

Voice Vote: Yes: Tungate, McClellan, Eickmeier, Waxenberg
No: None
Absent: Mlynczyk

MOTION DECLARED ADOPTED

PSRS-01-005-17 MINUTES FROM THE NOVEMBER 10, 2017 ERS/PSRS
SPECIAL CONCURRENT MEETING - APPROVED

Motion by Tetler, seconded by Batora, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to approve
the Minutes from the November 10, 2016 ERS/PSRS Special Concurrent

Meeting.

Voice Vote: Yes: Tungate, McClellan, Tetler, Batora, Rich
No: None
Absent; None

MOTION DECLARED ADOPTED

PSRS-01-006-17 MINUTES FROM THE DECEMBER 12, 2016 SPECIAL
PSRS MEETING - APPROVED

Motion by McClellan, seconded by Batora, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to
approve the Minutes from the December 12, 2016 Special PSRS Meeting.

Voice Vote: Yes: Tungate, McClellan, Tetler, Batora, Rich
No: None
Absent: None

MOTION DECLARED ADOPTED

(Agenda Item #6A) SEI Presentation and Funding Discussion

Glenn Harris from SEI presented a 2016 Fourth Quarter Investment Review dated January 23,
2017. A complete report is on file in the City Clerk’s Office. Mr. Harris reported fourth quarter
returns for the plans and summarized plan highlights on page 5 of the report. The Employees’
Retirement System assets as of December 31, 2016 were $18,681,097 and the Public Safety



Board of Trustees

Employees’ Retirement System and Public Safety Retirement System
Concurrent Meeting of January 23, 2017

Page: 6

Retirement System assets were $37,115,035. Both plans returned .9% for the quarter vs. 0.8% for
the Policy Index. Both plans outpaced the broad policy index of 60% US Stocks / 40% US Bonds.
Mr. Harris commented on specific aspects of the portfolio and the market outlook,

Mr. Harris also provided an analysis of the Retirement Systems’funded status relative to
alternative actuarial assumptions and contributions. Charts were reviewed on pages 22-29 of the
report.

Mr. Harris concluded his presentation by reviewing an analysis of moving the portfolio to a more
passive model that would help to reduce fees and possibly add value. The portfolio A model on
Page 31 of the report whereby equity asset classes were moved to index classes was discussed but
no recommendation was made or considered.

(Agenda Item #6B) Annual Determination of Interest Rate for Buy Back Calculations

ERS-01-006-17 MOTION TO SET THE RATE FOR BUY BACK
CALCULATIONS FOR THE EMPLOYEES
RETIREMENT SYSTEM AT 3.164 % — APPROVED

Motion by Eickmeier, seconded by McClellan, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to
set the rate for Buy Back Calculations for the Employees’ Retirement System at

3.164 %.

Voice Vote: Yes: Tungate, McClellan, Eickmeier, Waxenberg
No: None
Absent: Mlynczyk

MOTION DECLARED ADOPTED

PSRS-01-007-17 MOTION TO SET THE RATE FOR BUY BACK
CALCULATIONS FOR THE PUBLIC SAFETY
RETIREMENT SYSTEM AT 2.984 % — APPROVED

Motion by McClellan, seconded by Batora, CARRIED, to set the rate for Buy
Back Calculations for the Public Safety Retirement System at 2.984 %.

Voice Vote; Yes: Tungate, McClellan, Tetler, Batora
No: None
Abstain: Rich
Absent; None

MOTION DECLARED ADOPTED



Board of Trustees

Employees’ Retirement System and Public Safety Retirement System
Concurrent Meeting of January 23, 2017

(Agenda Item #7A-]) Financial Reports (ERS)

Page: 7

ERS-01-007-17 RECEIVE AND APPROVE ERS FINANCIAL REPORTS
(OCTOBER - DECEMBER 2016) - APPROVED

Motion by Waxenberg, seconded by McClellan, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY,
to receive and approve the following reports for the period October 1,

December 31, 2016:

A, SEI Investment Management Report
B. Fiduciary Net Assets Statement — Fund 731
C. SEI Private Trust Financial Report

D. Disbursements made by Retirement System
DATE CHECK# PAYEE/DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
11/03/16 SEI Private Trust Co. $ 13,739.09

Investment Counseling Fees for 07/01/16 - 09/30/16.

01/05/17 140723

Actuarial Attestation of Medicare Part D Subsidy plan year 2017

TOTAL QUARTERLY DISBURSEMENTS: $14,989.00

GRS Health and Welfare $ 1,250.00

E. Fiduciary Net Assets Statement — Fund 680

F. Retirees Actuarial Statements
NAME DEPARTMENT DATE STATUS
Jon Maly DPW 10/30/16 Final
Gary Shermantaro DPW 09/30/16 Final
Brain Wehner DPW 10/07/16 Final
G. Municipal and Military Buy-Back Calculations - None
H. Correspondence of Retirement Submission - None
L Necrology Report
DATE NAME
10/18/16 Patricia Lebtich
12/09/16 Regina McNulty
10/11/16 Lillian Pilon




Board of Trustees
Employees® Retirement System and Public Safety Retirement System
Concurrent Meeting of January 23, 2017

Page: 8
L Miscellaneous Information - None
Voice Vote: Yes: Tungate, McClellan, Eickmeier, Waxenberg
No: None
Absent: Mlynczyk

MOTION DECLARED ADOPTED

(Agenda Item #5A-J) Financial Reports (PSRS)

PSRS-01-008-17 RECEIVE AND APPROVE PSRS FINANCIAL REPORTS

(OCTOBER - DECEMBER 2016) - APPROVED

Motion by Rich, seconded by Tetler, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to receive
and approve the following reports for the period October 1, - December 31, 2016:

A SEI Investment Management Reports

B Fiduciary Net Assets Statement — Fund 733

C. SEI Private Trust Financial Report

D. Disbursements made by Retirement System
DATE CHECK# PAYEE/DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
10/13/16 139306 Roznowski, M $ 4.135.01
Refund of accumuiated contributions.
11/03/16 SEI Private Trust Co. $ 27,129.97
Investment Counseling Fees for 07/01/16 — 09/30/16.
01/05/17 140723 GRS Health and Welfare $ 1,250.00
Actuarial Attestation of Medicare Part D Subsidy plan year 2017
TOTAL QUARTERLY DISBURSEMENTS: $32,514.98

E. Fiduciary Net Assets Statement — Fund 680

F. Retirees Actuarial Statements
NAME DEPARTMENT DATE STATUS
Baumgartner, K Public Safety 10/14/16 Final

G. Municipal and Military Buy-Back Calculations - None

H. Correspondence of Retirement Submission - None

L Necrology Report - None

1. Miscellaneous Information - None



Board of Trustees

Employees’ Retirement System and Public Safety Retirement System

Voice Vote:

Concurrent Meeting of January 23, 2017

Page: 9
Yes: Tungate, McClellan, Tetler, Batora, Rich
No: None
Absent: None

MOTION DECLARED ADOPTED

PUBLIC COMMENTS:

There were no members of the public present wishing to speak.

ADJOURNMENT:

The meeting adjourned at 5:58 PM.

T. Edwin Norris, City Clerk



CITY OF OAK PARK, MICHIGAN
EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM AND
PUBLIC SAFETY RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES
SPECIAL CONCURRENT MEETING

February 27, 2017
4:30 PM

MINUTES

Chairperson Tungate called the meeting to order at 4:34 PM and asked the City Clerk to call roil.
EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM:

TRUSTEES PRESENT: Trustee McClellan, Trustee Tungate, Trustee Mlynczyk,
Trustee Waxenberg, Trustee Eickmeier

TRUSTEES ABSENT: None
ALSO PRESENT: City Clerk Norris and Deputy Finance Director
Crawford

PUBLIC SAFETY RETIREMENT SYSTEM:

TRUSTEES PRESENT: Trustee Tungate, Trustee McClellan, Trustee Tetler,
Trustee Rich, Trustee Batora (Left meeting at 5:00 p.m.)

TRUSTEES ABSENT: None
ALSO PRESENT: City Clerk Norris and Deputy Finance Director
Crawford

(Agenda Item #3A) Presentation of Request for Proposals for Actuarial and Custodial and
Benefit Payment Services for the Oak Park Retirement Systems by Fund Evaluation
Group, LLC

Investment Advisor Dave Wetzel from Fund Evaluation Group (FEG), presented a report dated
February 27, 2017 that reviewed the history of the process by which specific vendors were hired
for the retirement systems and outlined options for new potential candidates for actuarial,
custodial, benefit payment and investment manager services. The report included the vendor
responses for actuarial services and custodial and benefit payment services. The complete report
is on file in the City Clerk’s Office.



Board of Trustees

Employees’ Retirement System and Public Safety Retirement System
Special Concurrent Meeting of February 27, 2017

Page: 2

Mr. Wetzel reviewed and the board discussed three actuarial firms that provided responses to the
RFP. These included Gabriel Roeder Smith and Company (GRS), The Benefit Advantage, and
Watkins Ross (WR). He also reviewed and board members discussed specific candidates who
responded to the RFP for custodial and benefit payment services. PNC was a favorable
candidate.

(Agenda Item #3B) Consideration of Actuarial and Custodial and Benefit Payment Services
for the Oak Park Retirement Systems

There was consensus among the boards to review additional information regarding actuarial costs
related to the DROP program and the number of calculation scenarios included in the proposals.
Mr. Wetzel will plan to prepare a specific cost analysis/comparison for these services as well as
investment management, custodial and benefit payment services for SEI and PNC at the next

meeting planned for March 27, 2017. He will also include the pricing model used by Fund
Evaluation Group for consulting fees.

PUBLIC COMMENTS:

There were no members of the public present wishing to speak.

ADJOURNMENT:

The meeting adjourned at 5:35 PM.

T. Edwin Norris, City Clerk



CITY OF OAK PARK, MICHIGAN
EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM AND
PUBLIC SAFETY RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES
SPECIAL CONCURRENT MEETING

March 27, 2017
4:30 PM

MINUTES

Chairperson Tungate called the meeting to order at 4:31 PM and asked the City Clerk to call roll.

EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM:

TRUSTEES PRESENT: Trustee McClellan, Trustee Tungate,
Trustee Waxenberg, Trustee Eickmeier
TRUSTEES ABSENT: Trustee Mlynczyk
ALSO PRESENT: City Clerk Norris, Finance Director Crawford, Deputy

Finance Director Grondin, City Attorney Duff

PUBLIC SAFETY RETIREMENT SYSTEM:

TRUSTEES PRESENT: Trustee Tungate, Trustee McClellan, Trustee Tetler,
Trustee Rich, Trustee Batora

TRUSTEES ABSENT: None

ALSO PRESENT: City Clerk Norris, Finance Director Crawford, Deputy

Finance Director Grondin, City Attorney Duff

ERS-03-008-17 MINUTES FROM THE FEBRUARY 27, 2017 ERS/PSRS
SPECIAL CONCURRENT MEETING - APPROVED

Motien by McClellan, seconded by Waxenberg, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY,
to approve the Minutes from the February 27, 2017 ERS/PSRS Special
Concurrent Meeting.

Voice Vote: Yes: Tungate, McClellan, Eickmeier, Waxenberg
No: None
Absent: Mlynczyk

MOTION DECLARED ADOPTED



Board of Trustees

Employees’ Retirement System and Public Safety Retirement System
Special Concurrent Meeting of March 27, 2017

Page: 2

PSRS-03-009-17 MINUTES FROM THE FEBRUARY 27, 2017 ERS/PSRS
SPECIAL CONCURRENT MEETING - APPROVED

Motion by Batora, seconded by Tetler, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to approve
the Minutes from the February 27, 2017 ERS/PSRS Concurrent Meeting.

Voice Vote: Yes: Tungate, McClellan, Tetler, Batora, Rich
No: None
Absent: None
MOTION DECLARED ADOPTED

(Agenda Item #3A) Consideration of Actuarial, Investment Management, Custodial and
Benefit Payment Services for the Retirement Systems

Investment Advisor Dave Wetzel from Fund Evaluation Group (FEG) presented a summary of

fees associated with the management of assets for the retirement systems, The report illustrated
comparison figures for actual SEI charges and anticipated PNC charges used for the same asset
allocation.

Mr. Wetzel also reviewed the consulting fees associated with an ongoing relationship with FEG.
There was consensus among trustees to have the city manager and finance staff negotiate a
specific agreement with FEG to provide ongoing consulting for the retirement systems.

Mr. Wetzel continued with a cost analysis comparison for actuarial services. The report
compared fees for Watkins Ross, The Benefit Advantage and SAVITZ.

Mr. Tungate reviewed contract termination language found in the contracts from our current
vendors and trustees discussed the need for another special meeting.

There was consensus among trustees to schedule a Special Meeting on May 8, 2017 at 4:30 PM to
interview potential candidates for actuarial services. The next regular ERS/PSRS meeting is
scheduled for April 24, 2017 at 4:30 PM when both representatives from SEI and CBIZ Savitz
will be present.

PUBLIC COMMENTS:

There were no members of the public present wishing to speak.

ADJOURNMENT:

The meeting adjourned at 5:12 PM.

T. Edwin Norris, City Clerk



5G

BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL, OAK PARK, MICHIGAN
AGENDA OF: May 1, 2017 AGENDA #

SUBJECT: Maintenance agreement with the Road Commission for Qakland
County for street sweeping, litter picking, and lawn mowing services on
Greenfield Road from Eight to Ten Mile Roads and on Ten Mile Road from
Greenfield to Maplefield.

DEPARTMENT: Department of Public Works - KJY

SUMMARY: The Road Commission for Oakland County has offered to
compensate the City of Oak Park $16,591.65 this season for street sweeping,
litter picking, and ilawn mowing services on Greenfield Road from Eight to Ten
Mile Roads and on Ten Mile Road from Greenfield to Maplefield. We would be
required to sweep these roads three times per year and perform litter picking and
lawn mowing services five times per year.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT: N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION: It is recommended that the City Council
approve the attached agreement with the Road Commission for Oakland County
for street sweeping, litter picking, and lawn mowing services on Greenfield Road
from Eight to Ten Mile Roads and on Ten Mile Road from Greenfield to
Maplefield.

APPROVALS: _—
City Manager: {_ k/ﬂ

Finance Director:

Department Director:

EXHIBITS: Agreement



2017 SUMMER MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT
CITY OF OAK PARK

Under 1951 PA 51, As Amended

This Summer Maintenance Agreement (“Agreement™) is made this ____day of 2017,
between the Board of County Road Commissioners of the County of Qakland, State of Michigan, a public
body corporate, (hereinafter variously referred to as the “Board and as the “Road Commission for Oakland
County”) and the City of Oak Park, Oakland County Michigan, a Michigan municipal corporation
hereinafter referred to as the “City.”

WHEREAS, certain county primary and local roads more specifically set forth in Exhibit A, attached
hereto, are under the jurisdiction and control of the Board and are located within or adjacent to the City; and

WHEREAS, The City desires to be responsible for certain maintenance of said roads under the terms
of this Agreement and the Board is willing to participate in the cost thereof as provided in Section III of this
Agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual convenants set forth herein as provided, it is

hereby agreed as follows:
I

The City hereby agrees to be responsible for performing Summer Maintenance of certain roads under
the terms of this Agreement, and the Board agrees to participate in the cost thereof as provided in Section III
of this Agreement. “Summer Maintenance,” herein required to be performed by City, shall mean the work
and services specified in Exhibit B hereto and this Agreement. All maintenance work and services
performed by the City shall be in accordance with the Board’s minimum maintenance standards and this

Agreement.
II

The Board has determined and specified the equipment and personnel necessary to provide the
Summer Maintenance and the City has acquired the necessary equipment and personnel so specified. The
City shall keep accurate and uniform records of all Summer Maintenance work performed pursuant to this
Agreement. The Board shall have the right to audit City accounts and rccords insofar as such documents
concern this Agreement and the work and services performed and to be performed hereunder.

I

In consideration of the Summer Maintenance by the City, the Board hereby agrees to pay to the City
the sum of $16,591.65, as set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part hereof. Such amounts are
to be used by the City for Summer Maintenance. Payments are to be made by the Board to the City as

follows:
65% on September 15, 2017
35% upon completion of the last Summer Maintenance activity

The making of said payments shall constitute the Board’s entire obligation in reference to Summer

Maintenance.
v

It is specifically understood and agreed by the City and the Board that by undertaking to perform
Summer Maintenance of certain county primary roads, the City does not assume the Board's legal duty to

1



keep said roads in such condition as to be in accordance with MCLA 224.21, reasonably safe and convenient
for public travel, other than as may relate to the work and service to be performed as listed in Section I
above, and the City hereby agrees to hold harmless, represent, defend with counsel acceptable to the Board,
and indemnify the Board; the County of Oakland; the Office of the Oakland County Water Resources
Commissioner and any and all applicable drainage districts(s); the Michigan State Department of
Transportation and the Transportation Commission; any and all local units(s) of government within which
the roads subject to this Agreement are located, and the respective officers, agents and employees of all of
the foregoing, against any and all claims, charges, complaints, damages, or causes of action for (a) public or
private property damage, (b) injuries to persons, or (c) other claims, charges, complaints, damages or causes
of action arising out of the performance or non-performance of the activities which are the subject matter of
this Agreement, both known and unknown, whether during the progress or after the completion thereof.
However, this hold harmless provision does not apply in so far as any claim or suit is alleged to be, or
demonstrated to be, the result of a defect in highway design or condition and not related to the Summer
Maintenance activities set out in Section I. Further, since the Board has the statutory responsibility for
maintenance of the roads under this Agreement, it is the intent of the parties that the delegation by this
Agreement of those maintenance responsibilities to the City provide immunity to the City as an agent of the
County. Therefore, the City falls within the governmental immunity protection of the County.

During that part of the year that the City is providing Summer Maintenance under Section I, the City
agrees to notify the Board within 30 days, should it become aware of defects or maintenance requirements in
the roads set forth in Exhibit A, if said defects or maintenance requirements are not Summer Maintenance

subject to this Agreement.
A

The City shall acquire and maintain, during the term of the Agreement, statutory worker’s
compensation, employer’s liability, automobile and comprehensive general liability insurance coverages, and
such other insurance coverages, as described in Exhibit C attached hereto, covering the Board’s liability for
any and all claims arising out of the City’s performance or non-performance of the activities which are the
subject matter of this Agreement, and these coverages shall be obtained and maintained in accordance with
the requirements set forth in Exhibit C attached hereto and made a part hereof and shall be primary and non-

contributory.
Vi

The City further agrees to comply with all applicable laws and regulations, including laws and
regulations of the State of Michigan for safeguarding the air and waters of the State. In particular, City
facilities and operations must meet the provisions of Part 5 (Spillage of Qil and Polluting Materials) rules
promulgated pursuant to Part 31, Water Resources Protection, of the Natural Resources and Environmental
Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as amended. (Rules R324.2001 through R324.2009 address release prevention
planning, secondary containment, surveillance, and release reporting requirements).

VIl

In accordance with Michigan 1976 PA 453, as amended, and 1976 PA 220, as amended, the City
covenants not to discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment with respect to hire, tenure,
terms, conditions, or privileges of employment, or a matter directly or indirectly related to employment,
because of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, height, weight, marital status or because of a
disability that is unrelated to the individual’s ability to perform the duties of the particular job or position,
and to require a similar covenant on the part of any subcontractor employed in the performance of the
Agreement. A breach of this covenant may be regarded as a material breach of this Agreement.






